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1We performed our examination in accordance with the State Comptroller’s authority set forth in Article V, Section 1 of 

the State Constitution, as well as Article II, Section 8, and Article VII, Section 111 of the State Finance Law. 

November 8, 2016 

Nonie Manion 
Acting Commissioner 
Department of Taxation and Finance 
William A. Harriman State Campus 
Building 9 
Albany, NY  12227 

Re: 2015 Property Tax Freeze Credit  
Report 

Dear Acting Commissioner Manion: 

This letter summarizes the findings and recommendations resulting from our Office’s 

examination1 of Department of Taxation and Finance (Department) payments to taxpayers for the 

tax year 2015 Property Tax Freeze Credit (PTF Credit).  For tax year 2015, the Department 

approved nearly 2.1 million PTF Credit payments totaling $600.7 million.  The objective of our 

examination was to determine whether these credits were appropriate and complied with New 

York State Tax Law.   

A. Results of Examination 

We identified and returned to the Department 31,924 questionable PTF Credit payments totaling 

almost $8 million for follow-up evaluation and appropriate action.  In addition, we worked with the 

Department to identify and return an additional 12,786 PTF Credit payments totaling $2.55 million 

that were incorrect due to improper data formatting.    

We shared a draft report with Department officials and considered their comments (Attachment 

A) in preparing this final report.  Department officials generally agreed with our recommendations 

and stated that they will continue to work to ensure the accuracy of future PTF Credit payments.        

B. Background and Methodology 

The PTF Credit is intended to reimburse qualified New York State homeowners for increases in 

school and municipal taxes on their primary residences.  To receive the PTF Credit for tax year 
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2015, homeowners must receive the STAR property tax exemption (i.e., the property must be the 

homeowner’s primary residence and the total household income must be $500,000 or less) and 

the taxing jurisdictions where the homeowner’s primary residence is located must comply with the 

New York State Property Tax Cap.  In addition to complying with the Property Tax Cap, the 

homeowner’s school district must also have a State-approved efficiency plan that will achieve 

savings for taxpayers.   

The Department calculated the amount of PTF Credit based upon local assessment rolls, local 

tax bill files and Department records.  The Department received data in various formats from local 

governments and converted the data into a standardized format to ensure PTF Credit calculations 

were correct.  For tax year 2015, the Department approved nearly 2.1 million PTF Credit payments 

totaling $600.7 million.  We used data analytics to select for examination 138,962 individual, high-

risk PTF Credit payments totaling more than $75.9 million.   

C. Details of Findings 

As indicated above, we identified and returned to the Department 31,924 questionable payments 

totaling almost $8 million for follow-up evaluation and appropriate action.  Specifically, we 

returned: 

 25,567 payments totaling $5,480,752 due to calculation errors. 

 3,998 payments totaling $1,621,590 where either the homeowner or property was not 

eligible for the STAR property tax exemption.  This includes out-of-state residents, 

household incomes that exceeded the eligibility limit, secondary residences or business 

properties. 

 2,052 payments totaling $818,766 to deceased homeowners. 

 246 duplicate payments totaling $43,504. 

 61 payments totaling $8,722 due to other issues. 

Although the Department maintains the necessary data to identify out-of-state residents, 

household incomes that exceed eligibility limits, secondary residences, business properties and 

deceased homeowners, it did not always review that data prior to submitting payments to our 

Office for approval.  

In addition to the payments noted above, we worked with the Department to identify an additional 

12,786 PTF Credit payments totaling $2.55 million that were incorrect due to improper data 

formatting. These were returned to the Department for correction and reprocessing.    
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The cooperation between the Department and our Office for the 2015 tax year PTF Credit 

examination resulted in improved communications and a more streamlined process to pay 

taxpayers.  We look forward to continued cooperation and improvements for the 2016 tax year.  

We will continue working with the Department to audit any additional PTF Credit payments and 

to resolve all returned payments.  We appreciate the Department’s prompt review of questionable 

payments identified by our Office.  

Recommendations 

1) Ensure PTF Credit payment amounts are correct prior to submitting those 
payments for approval. 

2) Continue working with the local assessor offices to ensure data provided is 
standardized, complete, and accurate. 

3) For the 2016 tax year, use relevant Department data to ensure only eligible 
taxpayers receive the PTF credit. 

We thank the management and staff of the Department of Taxation and Finance for the courtesies 

and cooperation extended to our auditors.  Since your response to the draft report is in agreement 

with this report, there is no need for a further response unless you feel otherwise.  If you choose 

to provide a response, we would appreciate receiving it by December 7, 2016.   

Sincerely, 

Bernard J. McHugh 
Director of State Expenditures 

 
Enc: Attachment A 
 
cc: Edward Chaszczewski, Deputy Commissioner 

James Brunt, Director of Internal Audit 
 Tim Maher, Director of Real Property Tax Services 
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